0O ~NO OB WN -

A A D PEABREABRADOWWWWWWWWWNDNDNDNDNDDNDNDDNDNDNDN= =22 A O A A A A A
O PR, WON-_2 000N, WON-_00D0O0O0ONOODOAOPPWN-_OCOONOOOOGOPWDN-~OO

SALISBURY PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION
SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES
Tuesday August 12th 2025 6:30PM

Remote Meeting by Live Internet Video Stream and Telephone
Members Present: Members Absent:
Dr. Michael Klemens (Chair) Beth Wells (Alternate Member)
Cathy Shyer (Vice Chair)
Martin Whalen (Secretary)

Allen Cockerline (Regular Member) Staff Present
Bob Riva (Regular Member) Abby Conroy, Land Use Director (LUD)
Dr. Danella Schiffer (Alternate Member) Miles Todaro, Land Use Technical Specialist (LUTS)

Attorney Charles Andres, Legal Counsel
Herbert Singleton, Consulting Acoustical Engineer

Brief Items and Announcements

1. Call to Order / Establish Quorum

Chair Klemens called the special meeting to order at 6:30PM. A quorum was established with five regular
members present and seated (Dr. Michael Klemens, Cathy Shyer, Martin Whalen, Allen Cockerline, Bob
Riva). Alternate Member Dr. Danella Schiffer was also present.

2. Approval of the Agenda

Motion: To approve the agenda.
Made by Cockerline, seconded by Whalen.
Vote: 5-0-0 in favor.

3. Minutes of July 7, 2025 - pending

4. Minutes of July 21, 2025 - pending
5. Minutes of August 4, 2025 - pending
6. Minutes of August 5, 2025 - pending

Public Hearing - 6:30PM

7.#2025-0287 / Wake Robin LLC & Ms. Serena Granbery (ARADEV LLC) / 104 & 106 Sharon Road & 53
Wells Hill Road / Special Permit for Hotel, Redevelopment of the Wake Robin Inn (Section 213.5) / Map
47/ Lot 2 & 2-1 / DOR: 05/05/2025 / Continue Hearing, Close By 09/09/2025

The public hearing continued at 6:31PM. Chair Klemens provided an opening statement introducing
himself, the Commission Members, Land Use Office (LUO) Staff, the Commission’s Attorney Charles
Andres, and the Commission’s Acoustic Engineer Herbert Singleton. Chair Klemens explained Attorney
Andres would address a comment he (Chair Klemens) made at a previous Meeting on August 5, 2025.

Chair Klemens said the public hearing would be divided in two portions: Acoustical and General. Herbert
Singleton of Cross-Spectrum Acoustics would present his review of the Acoustical Study provided by
ARADEV. ARADEV may also review their Acoustical Study, then allow for response from Mr. Singleton,
the Commission, and the public. Chair Klemens asked that the public comments during this portion of
the hearing be related to acoustics. General comments would be requested at a later portion of the
meeting. LUTS Todaro listed the application documents that had been submitted since the last hearing
date.

Attorney Andres joined the meeting and explained that a statement made by Chair Klemens at a



47
48
49
50
51
52
53
54
95
56
57
58
59
60
61
62
63
64
65
66
67
68
69
70
71
72
73
74
75
76
7
78
79
80
81
82
83
84
85
86
87
88
89
90
91
92

SALISBURY PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION
SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES
Tuesday August 12th 2025 6:30PM
Remote Meeting by Live Internet Video Stream and Telephone

previous meeting indicating that “The Applicant proceeds at their own risk” was an accurate statement
of law. He said the application was submitted under Regulations adopted in 2024. The Crugers have
challenged the adoption of those regulations. Attorney Andres explained if the appeal is successful, the
Special Permit would be invalid.

Herbert Singleton introduced himself and explained decibels are commonly understood as a measure of
sound level, but sound measurement is not necessarily as straightforward as one might expect. He
explained that the Applicant evaluated noise limits from various activities at the Wake Robin Inn that
could be disruptive to neighbors, including music, traffic, and construction. The Applicant’s Engineer
performed an evaluation based on the Connecticut Department of Energy & Environmental Protection
(DEEP) noise level requirements and the existing background noise. The study measured existing noise
levels at the facility in the winter when existing background noise tends to be quieter. Mr. Singleton
explained that the Applicant used computer models to make mathematical predictions of future noise
levels, including predictions of noise levels heard beyond the property lines. Mr. Singleton believed
these were reasonable, good technical practices, that leaned on the side of making assumptions in favor
of the surrounding community. Mr. Singleton commented that he disagreed with the Applicant’s analysis
of car horns. He believed if analyzed differently, car horns would exceed state noise limits, but he also
did not believe they would be a major source of concern for this type of use. Mr. Singleton added that all
other sources of noise are well below the State limit, and he agrees with the Applicant’s methodology.
Regarding interior music, Mr. Singleton explained that the Applicant established a design goal below
what the State requires, attempting to limit sound levels more based on existing levels. Mr. Singleton
explained that he believes “nuisance” is more dependent on the existing background noise level (“L90”)
than the average noise level (“LAQ”), so he would like to see the predicted levels compared to the L90.
He also thought that construction noise should have been considered in the study due to the potential
for hammering and blasting.

Mr. Singleton suggested the Applicant install signs throughout the venue urging guests to be quiet or
notify neighbors of event dates. He also suggested adding a condition as part of their event contracts
that if noise complaints are received, the host could be fined. Chair Klemens noted the Commission does
not have the ability to issue fines. Chair Klemens asked if nuisance noise was subjective. Mr. Singleton
replied yes, nuisance cannot be defined and all that can be done as a technical professional is to try to
guantify it to some sort of numerical standard.

Vice Chair Shyer asked if sound levels at property lines provided in the study were indicative of what
other neighboring properties at different elevations might hear. Mr. Singleton replied no, the sound
levels in the study are probably higher than what somebody further away would actually hear.

Secretary Whalen asked if car door slamming was considered nuisance noise. Mr. Singleton replied car
engines starting and doors slamming have numerical value, but whether they are a nuisance is
subjective.

Commissioner Riva asked LUO Staff if noise complaints were received when the cell tower on site was
being constructed, LUD Conroy replied no. Commissioner Riva commented he was not concerned about
car horn noise in a rural area. He asked if the study provided a solid baseline for sound analysis. Mr.
Singleton replied yes.



93

94

95

96

97

98

99
100
101
102
103
104
105
106
107
108
109
110
111
112
113
114
115
116
117
118
119
120
121
122
123
124
125
126
127
128
129
130
131
132
133
134
135
136
137
138

SALISBURY PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION
SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES
Tuesday August 12th 2025 6:30PM
Remote Meeting by Live Internet Video Stream and Telephone
Commissioner Cockerline asked if the baseline noise of nearby traffic could be analyzed separately. Mr.
Singleton replied traffic noise data was not described separately in the report, however they likely have
the data available. He noted that traffic flow contributes to the baseline noise but would likely not be a
dominant source. Commissioner Cockerline asked how human behavior contributes to noise level. Mr.
Singleton answered that generally speaking human behavior is unpredictable and can be associated with
nearly any use, so considering it a major noise source could hinder nearly any development anywhere in
Town. Commissioner Cockerline asked if there would be benefit to installing solid fencing around parking
lots or machinery for noise control. Mr. Singleton replied any barrier would be likely to have some
benefit, but in some cases it probably would not be necessary.

Alternate Member Schiffer asked if study findings could be adjusted to consider additional noise from
increased activity in the warmer months. Mr. Singleton replied no, and clarified that by using the winter
noise measurements the Applicant’s findings are conservative, more indictive of the worst-case sound
increase from the project. She asked if there would be benefit to measuring background noise again
during the summer. Mr. Singleton replied yes, but it would be likely to find a lower increase in noise
pollution from the project. Land Use Attorney for ARADEV, Joshua Mackey asked Mr. Singleton if he
agreed that the Applicant’s assessment demonstrated the project would meet the Town nuisance
standard. Mr. Singleton replied that the Applicant had taken his suggestion to use the L90 rather than
the LAQ, and based on that revision he concurred with the conclusion that it would not be a nuisance.

Greg Tocci of Cavanaugh Tocci Associates presented the Applicant’s acoustical analysis in response to
Mr. Singleton’s review. Mr. Tocci explained the study was oriented to identify sound limits from the
property. They explored the existing environment by placing eight monitors around the property for a
week. Mr. Tocci shared concern with Mr. Singleton that nuisance noise was a subjective concept. He
believed interpreting L90 decibels as a design goal for intrusive sound was appropriate. Mr. Tocci
presented a plan which showed sound monitoring locations and reviewed the sound limits and goals
from each location. Mr. Tocci believed use of the 90th percentile level for setting music design goal of
32dBA was appropriate. He suggested adding a Construction Noise Control Plan to assess noise levels,
alert the community of anticipated noise, and hosting post construction sound monitoring. Mr. Tocci
determined that music sound levels have met their design goal and would not constitute a nuisance.

Chair Klemens opened the floor to the public for acoustical comments and questions.

Member of the public Aimee Bell believed the peaceful neighborhood of Wells Hill Road would be
permanently disrupted by noise emitting from the redeveloped project. She said music playing at the
outdoor pool would be a nuisance. She believed inebriated guests would not be mindful of signs, honk
car horns excessively, and initiate loud altercations.

Member of the public Bradford Palmer asked for a current dBA level on the property at night. He
remarked that he is able to hear various noises across Long Pond on Indian Mountain Road. He believed
the proposed application would emit too much noise for a residential neighborhood.

Member of the public Mark Hochberg said he owned property on the east side of Wononskopomuc
Lake. He was recently disrupted overnight by an outdoor tented wedding hosted on the south side. Mr.
Hochberg asked why amplification of noise across water was not included in the acoustic study
calculations.



139
140
141
142
143
144
145
146
147
148
149
150
151
152
153
154
155
156
157
158
159
160
161
162
163
164
165
166
167
168
169
170
171
172
173
174
175
176
177
178
179
180
181
182
183
184

SALISBURY PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION
SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES
Tuesday August 12th 2025 6:30PM
Remote Meeting by Live Internet Video Stream and Telephone

Member of the public Bill Cruger expressed support for all previous public comments. Mr. Cruger
believed the number of guests accommodated at the property was a relevant consideration of nuisance
noise.

Member of the public Darryl Peck believed the concern of nuisance noise was beyond subjectivity. He
believed the redevelopment would indefinitely create noise at a greater frequency due to increased size.
Mr. Peck explained that he filed a complaint with the LUO in February 2024 from blasting during
construction near his property.

Chair Klemens called a brief recess at 7:58PM. The meeting resumed at 8:03PM.

Chair Klemens asked representatives of ARADEV to provide updates or modifications to the application
since the last meeting. Steven Cohen of ARADEV introduced a member of the traffic team, Neil Olinski an
associate transportation planner from SLR. Mr. Cohen presented a slideshow addressing questions asked
at the previous public hearing. He verified the Applicant agreed to host outdoor events only during the
day ending at 8:00PM. Intended outdoor tented events would include ceremonies, festivals, community
events, trade shows, cocktail hours, and other similar events. Mr. Cohen confirmed the Inn’s restaurant
and courtyard would be open to the public in limited capacity during events. He explained the existing
Wake Robin Inn, a legal nonconforming use was permitted to continue hosting outdoor tented events
with amplified music without a Special Permit. If guests are being disruptive, the Town and the public
would have access to a phone number and email twenty-four hours per day to report concerns to
management. Mr. Cohen believed all proposed uses comply with the Zoning Regulations and referenced
their Zoning Compliance Analysis. He noted any tree proposed for removal on the property not included
on the proposed plan would be noticed to the LUO prior to removal. He explained the four cottages
would be reserved as hotel rooms on a nightly basis, categorized as suites. Suites can only be reserved
for a maximum number of thirty days for one reservation. The cottages would not be for sale or utilized
as permanent rental properties. Mr. Cohen said ARADEV was sensitive to environmentally friendly
lighting and construction. Proposed fixtures would limit light pollution while sufficient light required for
safety standards.

Mr. Olinski explained the traffic study, trip generation comparison letter, as well as two responses to
comment letters and two sign-offs from independent peer reviewers were included in the record. The
peer reviews concluded the redevelopment was anticipated to have minimal impact on local traffic flow.
Mr. Olinski presented an explanation of traffic engineering. Chair Klemens opened the hearing to public
comment.

Member of the public Bradford Palmer asked how traffic studies are performed. Mr. Palmer mentioned
the COVID19 pandemic could have reduced traffic Monday through Friday, but believed weekend traffic
had increased. Mr. Olinski replied that traffic count companies could use temporary traffic cameras or
manual traffic counts by individuals.

Member of the public Andy Plesser believed the proposed redevelopment would not be successful on a
small parcel of land compared to other event venues nearby. Mr. Plesser said the proposed application
was not a positive business proposition for Town and believed it would be a burden to the community.



185
186
187
188
189
190
191
192
193
194
195
196
197
198
199
200
201
202
203
204
205
206
207
208
209
210
211
212
213
214
215
216
217
218
219
220
221
222
223
224
225
226
227
228
229
230

SALISBURY PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION
SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES
Tuesday August 12th 2025 6:30PM
Remote Meeting by Live Internet Video Stream and Telephone

Member of the public Alice Peck said she moved to Town due to its special qualities and close
community. Ms. Peck believed an acceptance of this application could lead to additional developers
seeking Lakeville for financial opportunities. She said overdevelopment could result in erosion of the
community and culture.

Member of the public Barrett Prinz asked if the high speed of traffic by the property entrance on Sharon
Road was considered when evaluating egress of vehicles. Mr. Prinz mentioned students from Hotchkiss
School often walk down Sharon Road and hoped pedestrians were considered in the traffic study.
Jonathan Marrale replied yes, the Applicant was working with Connecticut Department of
Transportation to improve the entrance and exit sight lines.

Member of the public Leo Gafney asked why the Commission accepted the application. He also asked
how this project would positively influence the Town residents. Mr. Gafney believed the proposed
redevelopment was too large compared to the existing Wake Robin Inn. He believed the Commission
changed Zoning Regulations in favor of the Applicant. Chair Klemens explained the Commission has a
legal responsibility to accept all applications that are presented to them. Chair Klemens reminded the
public that the Commission serves the Town residents but must work within the limits of the Connecticut
General Statutes, which gives the Commission their authority.

Member of the public Paul Watson expressed support for statements made by Mr. Hochberg regarding
noise pollution at night from other venues in Town. Mr. Watson asked if the Applicant was agreeable to
cease music at hosted events by 10:00PM.

Member of the public Barbara Hockstader supported commentary made by previous members of the
public. Ms. Hockstader believed the proposed redevelopment was too large, bright, and noisy for the
residential area. She recalled that Commission members stated the previously submitted application
lacked compatibility with the surrounding neighborhood. Ms. Hockstader said the redevelopment was a
reduction compared to the previous application, but was still larger than the current Wake Robin Inn.

Member of the public Keith Ellis mentioned a study in 2023 which identified the average sized home in
Connecticut ranged between 1700 and 2000 square feet. He believed two-thousand square foot
cottages were too large.

Member of the public Darryl Peck asked why the Commission accepted the proposed application with a
pending legal case challenging the application. He expressed concern that construction would begin at
the property before the pending case was determined. Attorney Andres reiterated the Commission does
not have the discretion to withhold a decision and is obligated under Connecticut State law to consider
and process the application. He also clarified that the Commission is obligated to follow the Zoning
Regulations when processing applications for any kind of development. Chair Klemens asked Attorney
Andres if the Commission could be swayed by a petition signed by five-hundred Town residents opposed
to this application. Attorney Andres explained the Commission should consider all public comments then
evaluate whether the residents have raised good issues under the Zoning Regulations.

Member of the public Judy Gafney asked if the application was approved, could a condition be created
to ensure the property would be restored if construction begins and the legal case ends in the Crugers’
favor. She asked if construction for the application could be delayed until a judge’s decision was made.



231
232
233
234
235
236
237
238
239
240
241
242
243
244
245
246
247
248
249
250
251
252
253
254
255
256
257
258
259
260

261

262

SALISBURY PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION
SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES
Tuesday August 12th 2025 6:30PM
Remote Meeting by Live Internet Video Stream and Telephone
Attorney Andres explained that under State Statute, the Commission has sixty-five days after the close of
a public hearing to render a decision. He said a condition could be created to indicate no site
construction or Zoning Permits shall be issued until all State and local permits are approved. Chair
Klemens asked if the Commission could legally include a condition based on the court case outcome.
Attorney Andres replied no.

Member of the public Gerry Freedman asked for clarification of the differing opinions between Attorney
Mackey and Attorney Andres regarding the pending court case. Attorney Andres noted he submitted
into the record a statement that established if the Regulation is found to be invalid, then the Special
Permit would also be invalid.

Alternate Member Schiffer asked if the original ballroom in the existing Wake Robin Inn is still included
in the proposed redevelopment. Mr. Cohen replied the ballroom area would be replaced with the
addition, becoming additional guest rooms. Alternate Member Schiffer asked if the Applicant was
amenable to further reducing the project’s intensity, such as by placing additional restrictions on events.

Motion: To continue the public hearing to August 14, 2025 at 7:30PM via Zoom.

Made by Cockerline, seconded by Whalen.

Vote: 5-0-0 in favor.

Tabled Business

8. #2025-0295 / 235 Belgo Road, LLC / 235 Belgo Road / Vertical Expansion of a Nonconforming Barn
Proposed for Conversion to Single Family Residence (Section 503.2) / Map 9 / Lot 9 / DOR:07/21/2025 /
Public Hearing Scheduled 08/18/2025 at 6:45PM

Adjournment

The meeting adjourned at 9:14pm.

Respectfully Submitted,

Erika Spino

Secretary of Minutes



